BEFORE THE
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
(N THE MATTER OF:
Docket No. EPCRA 10-2008-0035

Pioneer aAmenricas 1LLC

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL
ORDER

Tacama, Washington

Respondent.

L W Ay

[. AUTHORITY

1.1, This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFQC™) is issued under the authority
vested in the Admimistrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) by Section
109 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
(CERCLA}, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act {EPCRA), 42 US.C. § 11045, The Administrator has delegated the
authority to issue the Final Order contained in Part V of this CAFO (o the Regional
Adminmstrator of EPA Region 10, who in tum has redelegated this authority 1o the Regional

Judicial Offcer.
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1.2, Pursuant to Section 109 of CERCLA and Seclion 325 of EPCRA, and in
accordance with § 22.13(b) of the “Consolidated Rules of Practice Goveming the Administralive
Asscssment of Civil Penalties,” 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b), EPA hereby issues and Pioneer Americas
LLC ("Respondent™} hereby agrees 10 issuance of the Final Order contained in Part V of this
CAFO.

. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

2.1 Inaccordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.45(b), issuance of this CAFC

commences this proceeding, which will conclude when the Final Order contained in Part V of

<

this CAFO becomes effective, )

2.2.  Respondent owns and operates a facility in Tacoma, Washingion located at 2001
Thome Road (“'the Facihiy™).

2.3.  The Facility manufactores chlorine bleach, repackages gaseous chlorine from rail
cars into one-ton containers and 150-pound cylinders, and transships gaseous sulfur dioxide.

2.4, A concise statement of the factual basis for alleging violations of CERCLA and '
EPCRA, (ogether with specific references to the provisions of the Acts and implementing
regulations Respondent is alleged to have violaled, appears in Pari 111 of this CAFO,

M. ALLEGATIONS
3.1, Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), requires the person in charge of

a facility w0 immediaiely notify the National Response Center (NRC) as soon as he or she has

knowledge of a release of a hazardous substance [rom such facility in an amount equal 1o or
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grealer than (he reportable quality (RQ).

3.2, Seclion 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and (b), require that if a
faciluy at which hazardous chemicals are praduced, used, or stored releases a reportable quantity
(RQ) of an exiremely hazardous substance and the release requires, or occurred in a manner that
would require, notice under Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 V.S .C. § 2603(a), the owner or
operator of the facility must immediately notify the State Emergency Response Commission
(SERC) of any state Jikely to be affected by the release and the Local Emergency Planning
Committec (LEPC) for any area likely 1o be affected by the release.

33, Under Seclion 101(21) of CERCLA, 42 us.c § 9601(21), and Scction 329(7) of
EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(7), “person” means, among other t‘];n'ngs, any corporafion.

3.4, Under Section 101(94) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(9), “facility” means,
among other things, any building, steucture, installation, storage container, equipment, or any sile
or area where a hazardous substance has been deposited, stoced, disposed of or placed, or
otherwise come to be located.

3.5.  Under Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4), “facility’ means all
buildings, cquipment, structures, and other stationary items that are located on a single site or on
conliguous or adjeacent siles and which are owned or operated by the same persen (or by any
person which controls, is controlied, or under common conirol with, such person).

3.6, Under Section 101(22) of CERCLA, 42 U.5.C. § 9601(22), “release™ means any

spilling, leaking, pumping, pounng, emilting, emplying, discharging, injecting, escaping,
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leaching, dumping, or disposing into the envillonmeni_

3.7.  Chlonne s a CERCLA *harardous substance” listed in 40 C.F.R. Part 302, Table
302.4. The RQ for Chlornine is 10 pounds. Chlorine is also an “extremely hazardous substance”
under Section 302 of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11002, it is hsted as such in 40 C.F.R Pad 355,
Appencix A.

3.8..  Under Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 US.C. § 9609, EPA may assess a civil
penalty of up to $25,000 for each day of violation of Section 103 of CERCLA. Under Section
325(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §11045(b), EPA may assess a civil penalty of up to $25,000 for
cach day of violation of Section 304 of EPCRA, 42 U S.C<§' 1 1904. The Debt Collection
Improvemnent Act of 1996, 31 17.5.C. § 3701, and its implementing regulations at 42 CF.R. Part
19, increased these statutory maximur penalties to $32,500 per day of vialation occurning after
Mareh 153, 2004.

3.9.  Respondent)s a Delaware Limited liability company.

3.10.  On February 12, 2007, the Facility released approximately 894 pounds of
Chlonne to the environment.

3.11. Respondent failed to immediately notify the NRC of the release of Chlorine from
ithe Facility.

3.12. Respondent also failed to immediately notify the Washington SERC and the

Pierce County LEPC of the release of Chlorine from the Facility.
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4.1.  Respondent admits the junsdictional alicgations contained in Part 111 of this
CAFO.

4.2.  Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations contained in
Part [T of this CAFO.

4.3.  Respondent expressly waives any nights to contest the allegations and to appeal
the Final Order contained herein.

4.4. The provisions of this CATO shall bind Respondent and its agents, servants,

L

employees, successors, and assigns, ..

4.5,  Except as provided in Paragraph 4.10., below, cach party shall bear ils own cosls
in bringiag or defending this action.

4.6. Based on Respondent’s willingness to seitle this matter without htigation, the
nature of the violations, Respondent’s agreement to perform a Supplemenial Environmental
Project (“SEP”), and other relevant factors, and in accordance with the Enforcement Response
Policy for Sections 304, 311, and 312 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-
Know Act and Section 103 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act, EPA has determined and Respondent agrees that an appropriate penally to settle

this action is $15,804.00, $5,268.00 for the CERCLA allegation and $10,536 00 for the EPCRA

allegations.
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4.7.  Respondent consents to the issuance of the Final Order recited herein and to

payment of the penalty cited in Paragraph 4.6 abave within 30 days of the Effective Date of the

Final Order.

4.8, Paymeni under this CAFQ shall be made by cashier’s check or certified cheek, or

money order made payable as indicated and mailed to the addresses bclow:

a. $5,268.00 payable to “EPA Hazardous Substance Superfund” and mailed

to:

LS Envirenmental Proteclion Agency
Superfund Payments

Cinginnati Finance Cenler

FO Box 979076 <

St Louis, MO 63197-9000

bh. £10,536.00 payable to the “U.S. Treasury™ and mailed to:

US Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnat Finance Center

PO Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

Respondent shall nole on the check the titte and docket number of this case.
4.9.  Respondent shall submit a photocopy of the check descnbed abave to:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10, Suite 900

1200 Sixth Avenue, Mail Stop ORC-158
Seattle, Washington 9810t
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Suzanne Powers
U.8. Environmentat Proteciion Agency
Region 10
Washington Operations Office
300 Desmond Drive S.E., Suite 102
Lacey, Washington 98503
4.10.  Should Respondeni fail to pay the penally assessed by this CAFQ in full by its
due date, the entire unpaid balance of penalty and accrued interest shall become immediately due
and owing. Should such a failure to pay occur, Respondent may be subject (o a civil action
under EPCRA Section 325(f), 42 U.S.C. § 11045(f), to collect any unpaid penalties, together
with interest, handling charges, and nonpaymeni penaltics, as set forth below.
4.11. Should Respondent fail to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFQ in full by its
due date, Respondent shall also be responsible for payment of the following amounts:

a. Interest. Any unpatd portion of the assessed penalty shall bear imerest at the
rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(1) from the
effective date of the Fina) Order contained herein, provided, however, that no interest shall be
payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within 3¢ days of the effective date of
the Final Order contained herein.

charge of $15 shall be paid if any portion ¢f the assessed penalty is more than 30 days past due.

¢ Nonpayment Penaity Pursuanito 31 U S.C. § 3717(e)(2), a nonpayment

penalty of 6% per annum shall be paid on any portion of the assessed penalty that is more than

Pioneer Americas LLC, Tacoma, Wa ' U S. Environmental Protection Agency
Consent Agreement And Tinal Order 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900
Page 7of 15 Seattle, Washington 93101

Docket No. EPCRA-10-2008.0035 (206) 553-1037



00 days past due, which nonpayment penalty ;hr;ll be calculated as of the dale the underlying
penalty first becomes past due.

4.12.  Respondent shali implement and complete the SEP within 90 days of lhe
Effective Date of this CAFQ, 1a accordance with all pravisions described in this Consent
Agreement. Respondent agrees Lhat the SEP is intended to improve emergency management by
allowing a more immediate, safe, and effective response in the event of an emergency.

4.13.  Respondent shall, donate the following equipment to the Tacoma Fire Department
w0 accordance the specifications set forth in Aflachment A to this CAFO: two portable
Weatherpak MTR HazMat weather stations, four MX6 iBrid hand-held multi-gas moniiors (twq
of model MXG6-PJT3R211 and two of model MX6-B567P21 1); one ISG Elite K1000 thermal
imaging camera; #nd two Trelleborg Level A gastight suits. The equipment will be used to
improve the department's capabilities in responding to hazardous materials emergencies in a safe
and effeclive manner.

4.14  Respondent’s deadline 10 perform the SEP shall be excused or extended if such
performance is prevented or delayed solely by events which constitute a Force Majeure event. A
Force Majeure event is defined as any event ansing from canses beyond Lthe reasonable conirol
of Respondent, including its employees, agents, consultanis, and contractors, which could not be
overcome by due diligence and which delays or prevents the performance of the SEP within the
performance, changed economic circumstances, changed labor relations, normal precipitation or

climaie events, changed circumstances arising out of the sale, lease, or other transfer or
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conveyance of title or ownership or possessio.n of a site, or failure lo oblain federal, state, or local
permits.

4.15. The cost to Respondent of implementing the SEP in accordance with the
specificalions set forth in Paragraph 4.13. above and as further detailed in Attachment A of this
CAFOQ shall be not less than $59,144.00. Respondeni shall include documentation of the
expenditures made in connection with the SED as part of the SEP Complelion Report.

4.16. Respondent hereby certifies that, as of the date of this Consent Agreement,
Respondent is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any federal, state, or local law or
rcgulation; nor is Respondent required to perform or develgp the SEP by any other agreement,
under 4 grant, or as injunctive relief in any other case. Respondent further certifies that it has not
received, and 18 not presently negotiating 10 receive, eredit in any other enforcement action for
the SEP. For Federal [ncome Tax purposes Respondent agrees that it will neither capitalize in
mveniory or basis nor deduct any cost or expenditures incurred 1n perfooming this SEP.

4.17. Respondent shall submit a SER Completion Report to EPA within 90 days of the
Effective Date of the CAFO. The SEP Completion Report shall contain the following
wnformation;

a A description of the SEP as implemenied.

b. llemized costs, documented by copies of purchase orders and receipts or
cancelled checks;

c. Certification that the SEP has been fully implemented pursuant o the

provisions of this CAFQ;
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d. A description of any 0|;erat|ng problems encountered and the solutions
therelo; and

e A description of the environmental and public health benefits cesulting
from implementation of the SEP.

4.18. Respondent agrees that failure to submit the SEP Completion Report required by
Paragraph 417, above, shail be deemed a violation of this CAFQO and Respondent shall become
liable for stipulated penalties pursuant to this CAFO.

4.19.  Unless othecwise instructed in writing by EPA, Respondent shalt submit all
notices and reports required by this CAFO by first class m(:dil, o_yemighl mail, or hand delivery
to:

Suzanne Powers

U.S. Environmental Profection Agency
Region 10

Washington Operations Qffice

300 Desmond Drive SE, Suite 102
Lacey, WA 98503

4.20. Respondent agrees that EPA may inspect Respondent's records related to the SEP
at any reasonable ume in order to confirm that the SEP is being undertaken in conformity with
the representations made herein.

4.21. Respondeni shall maintain legible copies of documentation of the underlying data
for documents or reports submitted to EPA pursuant 1o this CAFO until the SEP Completion

Report is accepled pursuant to Paragraph 4.22., and Respondent shall provide the documeniation

of any such underlying data to EPA wilhin 15 days of a wrilten request for such information. In
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all documents or reports including, without i'iﬁita{ion‘ the SEP Completion Report submitted to
EPA pursuant to this CAFO, Respondent shall, by a corporate officer, sign and certify under
penalty of law that the information contained in such a document or report is (rug, accurate, and
not misleading by signing the following statement:
| certify under penalty of law thai [ have examined and am familiar with the
mformation submitied in this document and all attachments and that, based on my inquiry
of those individuals tmmediately responsible for oblaining the information, 1 believe that
the information is truc, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant

Ipcna].ties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fines and

ymprisonment.

4.22. TFollowing receipt of the SEP Completion Report described in Paragraph 4.17
above, EPA will do one of the following: (1) accept the Report';”(ii} reject the Report, notify
Respondent, in writing, of deficiencies in the Report and provide Respondent an additional 30
days (n which (o correct any deficiencies; or (iii) reject the Report and seck suipulated penaltics
in accordance with Parageaph 4.24.

4.23.  In the event the SEP is not completed as contemplated by this CAFO and this
failure was not caused solely by events which constitute a Force Majeure as dctined by
Paragraph 4.14., above, lhen stipulated penalties shall be due and payable by Respondent to EPA
in accordance with Paragraph 4.24., below. Schedules herein may be cxtended based upon
mutual wntten agreement of the parties.

4.24. In the event that Respondent fails to comply with any of the terms or provisions

of this CAFO relating to the performunce of the SEP described above and/oc 10 the extent that

the actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal ar exceed the cost of the SEP described in this
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CAFO, Respondent shall be liable for stipula.t‘ed ];enultics according to the provisions set forth
below:

a. Fora SEP which has not been completed satisfactonly pursuant te this CAFO,
Respondeni shall pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of $59,144.00, less the amount actually
expended on the SEP.

b. For failure to submii the SEP Completion Report as required by Paragraph
4.17., above, Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty in the amount $100.00 for cach day after
the report is due until the report is received by EPA, not lo exceed $2,500.00.

4.25.  Stipulated penalties under Paragraph 4.24, ébovc, shall begin to accrue on the day
after performance is due, and shall continue to accrue through ﬁw final day of satisfactory
completion of 1he activity, subject to the maximum set forth in Paragraph 4.24.b., above.

4.26. Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties within 15 days of receipt of a written
demand by EPA for such penallies. One-third of the penally shall be payable to the *“EPA
Hazardous Sabstance Superfund™, and (wo-thirds shall be payable 1o the “U.S. Treasury” in
accordance wiih the provisions of Paragraph 4.8, above. Interest and late charges shall be paid
as stated in Paragraph 4.11, above,

4.27. Except as provided in Paragraph 4.31,, below, nothing in the CAFQ shall be
construed as prohibiting, altering, or in any way limiting the ability of EPA to seek any other
remedies or sanctions available by virtue of Respondent’s violation of this agreement or of the
stafutes and regulalions upon which this agreement is based, or for Respondent’s violation of any

applicable provision of law.
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4.28. Any public statemeni, oral or wnitten, in pnnt, film, or other mediz made by
Respondent making reference to the SEP shall include the following language: “Thig project
was undertaken in connection with the seftlement of an admimistrative enforcement action taken
by the U.S. Eavironmental Prolection Agency under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act and the Emergency Planning and Community Right-
1o-Know Act.”

4.29. This CAFO shali not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all
applicable provisions of federal, state, or local law, nor shall it be consirued to be a ruling on, or
determination of, any issue related to any federal, state, or\.{ocal{permit, nor shall it be construed
to constituie EPA approval of the equipment or technology installed by Respondent in
conneclion with the SEP under the terms of this CAFO,

4.30. Respondenl represents that it is duly authonzed 10 exeeule this CAFO and that the
party signing this CAFO on uls behalf is duly authorized (o bind Respondent 10 the terms of this
CAFO. This CAFO may be executed in mulliple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to

have the same force and eftect as an original. A facsimile signafure shal) be treated as an

onginal.
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431, Compliance wilh all the terms and conditions of this CAFO shall resultin full

seltlement and satisfaction of all claims for penalties alieged in Section [11 above.

STIPULATED AND AGREED:

FOR PIONEER AMERICAS LLC

FOR U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 10

Robert [ Hartman
Assistant Regional Caunsel
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V. FINAL ORDER

5.1.  The terms of the forcgoing Consent Agreement are hereby ratified and
incorporated by reference into this Final Order. Respondent is hereby ordered lo comply with
the lerms of settiernent contained in the Consent Agreement.

52  This CAFO constitutes a settlement by EFA of all claims for civil penalfies
pursuani to CERCLA and EPCRA for the particular violations alteged in Part |11, above. In
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(a), nothing in this CAFO shall aftect the right of EPA or the
United States to pursue appropriate injunclive or other equitabie relief or criminal sanctions for
any violations of law. This CAFO does not waive, extingliish, or otherwise affect Respondent’s
vbligations Lo comply with all applicable provisions of the Act and regulafions and perinits

issued thereunder,

Thus Final Order shall become effective upon filing.

—- 1
SO ORDERED this / 0 dayof OW\UG-—Z 2008.

Rithard G. McAllister
Regional Judicial Officer
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Region 10
Pioneer Americas LLC, Tacoma, WA ' U §. Envitonmental Prolection Agency
Consent Agreement And Final Order 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900
Pase 150f 15 Seaille, Washinpton 98101

Dockel Na. EPCRA-10-2008-0035 (206) 553-1037



ATTACHMENT A

IN THE MATTER OF: PIONEER AMERICAS LLC.
EPA DOCKET NO. EPCRA-10-2008-0035
SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT (SEP)

Respondent will purchase two portable Weatherpak MTR HazMat weather stations; four
MX6 1Brd hand-held multi-gas monitors; one 1SG Clite K1000 therma!l imaging camera;
and iwo Trellchorg Level A gastight suits, as described below, and donate 1t to the
Tacoma Fire Department. These items were specifically identified by Tom [lenderson,
Tacoma Fire Department Assistant Chief of Special Operations, as equipment that will
improve the Department’s capabilities in responding to hazardous materials emergencies
in a safe and effective manner.

Proneer Americas LLC will spend at least §59,144.23 on this SEP,
Ttem | <

Description: Two portable Weatherpak MTR HazMat weather stations designed for first
responders, one tripod-imounted and onc vehicle-mounted. The units automatically
update CAMEO/ALOHA plume modeling sofiware. Sensors provide wind speed and
direction, automalic compass, air temperature, relative humidity, barometric pressure and
GPS dala. Weather data is transmitted via UHF radio and the receiver display, and the
equipment allows for future additions of up to 20 inputs. The portable unit is designed
for placement within the “hot zone.” After the release from the Tacoma Plant, a shift in
wind direction led to Fire Department exposures. Having real-time meteorological data
could help avoid similar circumstances in the foture.

Firm quote: $27,514.37, including tax and shipping. Quote provided by Coastal
Environmental Systems, Inc., 820 First Ave. S., Seattle, WA 98134,

ITEM 2

Description: Two MX61Brid hand-held multi-gas monitors with IR LEL, oxygen,
hydrogen sulfide, carbon monoxide, chlorine, and PID sensors with integrated pumps;
fwo MX6 18nd hand-held multi-gas monitors with [R LEL, ammonia, chlorine, sulfur
dioxide, and hydrogen cyanide sensors with integrated pumps; and associated docking
module, charger, sensors, calibration cylinders and other support equipment. These unils
have color displays that allow clear readings in low-light and bright-light conditions

Firm quote: $17,685.80, including tax  Quote provided by Airgas Nor-Pac,
4405 Pacific Highway E, Fife, WA 98424,

Supplemental Environmental Project
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ITEM 3

Description: Oane 1SG Elile K1000 thermal imaging camera with megapiclure
technology (http://www.isgfire.com/k 1000 _main.asp). This camera provides clear
readings in extremely high temperature situations, such as might be associated with fice
fueled by hazardous materials.

Firm quote: 39,349.06, including carrying case, lax, and freight. Quote provided by
ISG Thermal Systems USA, Inc., 305 Peity Rd., Lawrenceville, GA 30043,

ITEM 4

Descripfion: Two Trelieborg Leve! A gastight suils ($2275 each). These will be a new type
of suit for the Fire Depariment 1o add to their existing inventory. The suits have

a different capabiity (twist lock cuffs) than those the Department currently has. The
suits will allow the Department to better fit its various-sized firefighter/tlazardous
Materials Technicians.

Firm quote: §4,595, including freight, from Bauer San Francisco, 267 East Airway
Boulevard, Livermore, CA 94551, 925-449-7210

TOTAL: $59,144.23

Supplemental Environmental Project
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifics that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT
AND FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: Pioneer Americas LLC, DOCKET NO.:
EPCRA-10-2008-0035 was filed with the Regional Heaning Clerk on January 15, 2008,

On fanuary 16, 2008 the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the
document was delivered to:

Robert Hartman, Esquire

US Environmental Protection Agency
1200 Sixth Avenue, ORC-158
Seattle, WA 98101

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned
document was placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt on January 16, 2008, to:

George Karscig

Plant Manager
Pioneer Americas LLC
2001 Thorne Road
Tacoma, WA 98421

DATED the 16™ day of January 2008.

AT

Carol Kennedy
Regional Hearing Clerk
EPA Region 10




